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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corp. 

2023 Shareholders’ Meeting Procedure 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order (reporting of the number of shares in attendance) 

II. Chairman’s opening remarks 

III. Management Presentation  

IV. Proposals 

V. Provisional Motion 

VI. Adjournment  
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Agenda of Shuang-Bang Industrial Corp.’s  

2023 Shareholders’Meeting 

Time: 10am on June 20, 2023 (Tuesday)  

Venue: 1F, No.3, Yongxing Road, Nangang Industrial Park, Nantou City, Nantou County (the 

Company’s Factory No.1) 

Format of shareholders’ meeting: physical  

Meeting procedures: 

I.  Call Meeting to Order (reporting of the number of shares in attendance) 

II.  Chairman’s opening remarks 

III.  Management Presentation 

(I) 2022 business plan 

(II) Audit Committee’s 2022 Review Report 

(III) Distribution of employee remuneration and director remuneration for 2022  

(IV) Distribution of cash dividends from 2022 earnings  

(V) Amendment of Practical Guides on Corporate Governance 

(VI) Matter Investees 100% owned by the Company  

IV.  Proposals  

Proposal 1: Ratifying 2022 Business Report and financial statements  

Proposal 2: Ratifying Table of 2022 Earnings Distribution   

V.  Provisional Motion  

VI.  Adjournment  
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[Management Presentation] 

Proposal 1 (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Subject: 2022 business report.  

Explanation: Please refer to Attachment 1 (pages 7-9) for the business report.  

 

Proposal 2 (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Subject: 2022 Audit Committee’s audit report. 

Explanation: Please refer to Attachment 2 (page 10) for Audit Committee’s Review Report. 

 

Proposal 3 (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Subject: 2022 the distribution of employee remuneration and director remuneration. 

Explanation: The Company posted a profit of NT$311,452,280 in 2022 and NT$20,000,000 

(6.4215% of this amount) as employees’ remuneration and NT$8,500,000 (or 

2.7292% of this amount) as directors’ remuneration will be issued in cash.  

 

Proposal 4 (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Subject: 2022 the distribution of cash dividends from earnings.  

Explanation: 1. According to Article 30-1 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation  

 2. On March 17, 2023, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the distribution 

of cash dividends for a total of NT$98,832,991 or NT$1.2 per share, rounded 

down to the NT dollar. Fractional amounts are aggregated into the Company’s 

other income. Chairman is authorized to determine the ex-right date, the issuance 

date and other relevant matters.  
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Proposal 5 (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Subject: The amendment of Practical Guides on Corporate Governance. 

Explanation: 1. Amendment of the Company’s Practical Guides on Corporate Governance in 

alignment with laws and regulations 

 2. Please refer to Attachment 5 (pages 32-36) for Comparison of Practical Guides on 

Corporate Governance Before and After Amendment.  

 

Proposal 6 (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Subject: The report on the Company’s 100% investees.  

Explanation: On November 30, 2022, the Company completed the registration for change 

regarding the subsidiary SHUANG BANG INDUSTRIAL CORP. (BVI) 100% 

owned after a within-group merger.  
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[Proposals] 

 

Proposal 1 (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Subject: Please kindly ratify the 2022 business report and financial statements.  

Explanation: 1. The Company’s 2022 business report and financial statements (including 

consolidated financial statements) have been approved by the Board of Directors 

and reviewed by Audit Committee.  

 2. The abovementioned financial statements were audited by Weyong International 

CPAs & Co. 

 3. Please refer to pages 7–9 (Attachment 1) and 11–30 (Attachment 3) for the 2022 

business report, Independent Auditors’ Report, and financial statements (including 

consolidated financial statements). 

Resolution: 

 

Proposal 2 (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Subject: Please kindly ratify the proposal for 2022 earnings distribution.   

Explanation: Please refer to Attachment 4 (page 31) for the Company’s table of 2022 earnings 

distribution.  

Resolution:  

 

 

  



 

6 

 

 

 

[Provisional Motion] 

 

 

[Adjournment] 
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corp. 

Business report 

 

I. 2022 business report 

On behalf of the board, I would like to first thank all our employees for their contribution and all our 

shareholders for their long-time support. 

Below is a report on the Company's 2022 business performance and 2023 business plans and goals:  

(I) Results of the 2022 business plan 

The Company’s net consolidated revenue totaled NT$2,186,641 thousand for 2022, at a gross margin of 

14.06%. Earnings per share was at NT$3.20. 

The Company saw a recovery of orders in 2022 as the pandemic eased. As a result, consolidated revenue 

grew 8.60% from 2021. Gross profits increased by 10.87% from the previous year.   

(II) Budget execution in 2022 

The Company did not disclose its financial forecast for 2022, hence no explanation is required.  

(III) Revenue, expense, and profitability analysis 

1. Financial overview and analysis 

Unit: NTD thousands 

Item 2022 2021 Variation (%) 

Net operating revenues 2,186,641  2,013,489  8.60  

Operating costs (1,879,287) (1,736,266) 8.24  

Gross profit 307,354  277,223  10.87  

Operating expenses (226,352) (192,660) 17.49  

Operating net profit 81,002  84,563  (4.21) 

Non-operating net income 

(expense) 
191,172  6,443  2,867.13  

Profit before tax 272,174  91,006  199.07  

Income tax expense (15,431) (15,050) 2.53  

Current net income 256,743  75,956  238.02  

Other comprehensive 

income 
14,943  3,456  332.38  

Total comprehensive 

income for the current 

period 
271,686  79,412  242.12  

 Note: The above figures were taken from audited consolidated financial statements 

 

 

Attachment 1 



 

8 

 

 

2. Profitability analysis 

Item/Year 2022 2021 

Return on assets (%) 10.42% 3.40% 

Return on equity (%) 19.43% 6.01% 

As a percentage of paid-up 

capital (%) 

Operating 

profit 
9.84% 10.27% 

Profit before 

tax 
33.05% 11.05% 

Net profit margin (%) 11.74% 3.77% 

Earnings per share (NTD) (Note) 3.20  0.83  

Note: EPS is calculated after making retrospective adjustments based on weighted average outstanding 

shares in the current year. 

(IV) Research and development 

1. Highly breathable bio-based hydrophilic film (biomass content >40%) 

2. Bio-based microporous film (biomass content >35%) 

3. Weatherproof resin 

4. Water-based hot-melt adhesive 

5. 100% toluene resin 

6. One-layer coating finished resin  

7. Bluesign certified breathable film  

8. Foam injection technology 

9. Hot-melt adhesive for shoe materials  

10. R-PET hot-melt adhesive 

11. Non-yellowing TPU film  

II. 2022 business plan  

(I) Business guidelines for the year  

1. Enhance group-wide resource integration and improve operating performance. 

2. Strengthen customer relations for increased collaborative benefits. 

3. Promote environment-friendly products and rally consumers toward social responsibilities. 

4. Improve quality management practices to ensure the stability of product quality for better customer 

satisfaction. 

5. Invest into the improvement of production procedures for reduced production cost and enhanced 

competitiveness. 

6. Enhance industrial safety and health training, and improve work environment for all employees. 

(II) Expected sales/volumes and basis of forecasts  

Unit: tonnes/thousand yards 

Main products Expected 2023 volumes 

Coating and lamination 21,000 

Resin 3,300 

Curing agent 3,200 

TPU 955 

The above forecasts of sales and volumes are based on 2022 results, new products under development, 

anticipated growth in 2023 and customers’ demand.  
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(III) Important sales and marketing policy  

1. Make ongoing improvements to the production procedure for better customer satisfaction. 

2. Develop high value-adding products for improved competitiveness. 

3. Work with globally reputable companies for new market expansion. 

4. Promote environment-friendly products and rally consumers toward social responsibilities. 

III. Future development strategies 

(I) Maintaining of good interactions with upstream and downstream partners for a stable supply and sales 

network. 

(II) Developing initiative product and exploiting new market.  

(III) Establishing Talent pipeline and enhancing employee training & education to support business expansion. 

IV. Impact of the external competition, legal, and overall business environments 

Despite intensifying competition in the external environment, the management has tracked market changes 

closely and responded to complex and unpredictable situations with appropriate strategies in a timely manner. 

With the support of the R&D team, the Company has been able to introduce products with distinctive advantages 

to meet the competition and thrive amidst the challenging environment. With respect to the regulatory 

environment, the Company observes national policies and laws whereas internal units such as finance, 

shareholder service, internal audit etc. are capable of monitoring changes and making appropriate adjustments to 

internal systems, operations, and business activities to ensure continuity. As for the macroeconomic environment, 

increased volatility in the price of raw materials has had direct impact on the Company's business costs, which the 

management has responded with pro-active inventory controls, product portfolio adjustments, and continued new 

product developments in an attempt to expand market presence for greater performance. 

We hereby present to shareholders our business performance for 2022 along with outlooks and strategies for 

the current year. Motivated by the philosophy of "integrity, quality, innovation, and sharing," Shuang-Bang 

envisions itself of becoming "world's top tier technology innovator and value creator" and will accelerate new 

product development and strengthen technical capabilities critical to competitiveness, in order to produce high-

quality products catering to customers' needs and gain market shares. Lastly, we thank you once more for your 

trust and support in the last year, and look forward to your guidance and encouragement in the future. 

 

   

 

 

 

  

Chairman Manager 
Chief 

Accounting 

Officer 
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Audit Committee's Review Report 

 

 
 

 
Date: March 17, 2023 

 

The Board of Directors prepared and submitted the 2022 business report, the proposal for 

earnings distribution and the parent company-only financial statements and the consolidated financial 

statements audited by CPA Jim-Chen Ko and CPA Tzu-Yang Wang with Weyong International CPAs 

& Co. to Audit Committee for review and no non-conformity was identified. Hence, these reports are 

duly presented in accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 

of the Company Act.  

TO 

The Company’s 2023 shareholders’ meeting  

 

 

 

 

Shuang-Bang Industrial Corp. 

 

 

Convener of Audit Committee, Yen Wang  
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

To the Board of Directors of Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation. 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of Shuang-Bang Industrial 

Corporation. (the “Company”) as of December 31,2022 and 2021, and the parent company only 

statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 

31 2022 and 2021, and the notes to the parent company only financial statements, (including a 

summary of significant accounting policies). 

In our opinion, the parent company only financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of the parent company as of December 31,2022 and 2021, 

and its financial performance and cash flows year ended December 31,2022 and 2021, in accordance 

with requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparations of Financial Reports by Securities 

Issuers. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 

Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the Republic 

of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are the further described in the Auditors’ 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation in accordance with the Norm of 

Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China (the “Norm”), and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significant in our 

audit of the 2022 parent company only financial statements. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Key audit matter for the Company’s parent company only financial statements for the year ended 

December 31, 2022 is stated as follows: 

Allowance for losses on Accounts Receivable 

The management’s judgment on the recognition of allowance for losses on accounts receivable is 

based on the evaluation of both internal and external information, as such, it was one of the key audit 

matters for our audit. Therefore, our principal audit procedures included testing the effectiveness of 

controls related to accounts receivable, obtaining the ledgers and records, selecting samples for 

obtaining confirmation letters; obtaining aging analysis of accounts receivable and verifying the 



accuracy of relevant documents and the aging intervals, reviewing the provision for bad debts on the 

ledger to ensure that it is provided based on the loss rate, and evaluating whether management's 

recognition of impairment losses on accounts receivable is correct. 

Please refer to Note 4 “Summary of significant accounting policies－Accounts receivables”, Note 

6(3) in notes to the parent company only financial statements for. 

Valuation of inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, the rapid evolution of 

technology and the fluctuation of market may lead to obsolescence and render products unmarketable. 

As inventory must be measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, management must assess 

the amount of inventory on the balance sheet date that is impaired due to normal wear and tear, 

obsolescence or lack of market sales value, and write down the inventory costs to net realizable value. 

The inventory valuation is mainly based on past experience and estimated future product demand. 

Therefore, the auditor pays particular attention to whether the company complies with International 

Accounting Standards 2 (IAS2) in measuring inventory at the lower of cost and net realizable value 

and whether management's provision for inventory write-downs is reasonable. 

The audit procedures performed by the auditor include: 

1. Testing the age of inventory on the balance sheet date, and comparing the provision for 

inventory obsolescence with the previous year, analyzing the reasons for differences, and 

checking the relevant data used to calculate the provision for inventory write-downs, and 

comparing the historical provision with the actual offsetting differences. 

2. On a sample basis, comparing the latest actual selling price of inventory at the end of the period 

with its book value to ensure whether the inventory has been evaluated at the lower of cost and 

net realizable value. 

3. Comparing the ending inventory balance on the end of the year with the inventory details for 

the current year to verify the existence and completeness of inventory in the end of the year. By 

observing annual physical counts of goods, the auditors assess the reasonableness of the amount 

of allowance for inventory write-down. 

Please refer to Note 4 “Summary of significant accounting policies－Inventories”, Note 6(4) in notes 

to the parent company only financial statements. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent company 

only Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only 

financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the preparation of Financial 

Reports by Securities Issuers and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 

enable the preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 

the Company ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance (including members of the Audit Committee) are responsible for 

overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent company only Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the 

Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent 

company only financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we 

exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company 

only financial statements. We are responsible for the directions, supervision and performance of 

the Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 



related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements for the 

year ended December 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 

our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partners on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Jim Chen Ko 

and Tzu Yang Wang. 

 

Weyong International CPAs&Co. 

 

Taichung, Taiwan 

Republic of China 

 

March 17, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

Notice to Readers 

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, financial performance and 

cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not 

those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those 

generally applied in the Republic of China. 

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying financial statements have been 

translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any 

conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two 

versions, the Chinese-language independent auditors’ report and financial statements shall prevail. 

 



 

Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation 

Parent-company-only Balance Sheets 

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

December 31, 2022 and 2021 

      December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Codes  Assets  Notes  Amount  %  Amount  % 

  Current assets           

1100  Cash and cash equivalents  6(1)  $     75,938   3.24   $     40,583   1.68  

1137  Financial assets at amortized cost -current  6(2)  900   0.04   900   0.04  

1150  Notes receivables, net  6(3)  83,065   3.55   84,775   3.50  

1152  Other notes receivables  6(3)  35   -   465   0.02  

1160  Notes receivable from related parties, net  6(3), 7  7,666   0.33   14,721   0.61  

1170  Accounts receivables, net  6(3)  329,211   14.04   312,653   12.91  

1180 
 Accounts receivables from related parties, 

net 

 
6(3), 7  

 
11,256   0.48  

 
14,061  

 
0.58  

1199 
 Finance lease receivables from related 

parties 

 
7 

 
1,280   0.05  

 
1,280  

 
0.05  

1200  Other receivables    201   0.01   85   -  

1210  Other receivables from related parties   7  1,266   0.05   1,457   0.06  

130X  Inventory  6(4)  302,196   12.89   335,779   13.86  

1460  Noncurrent assets held for sale, net  6(5)  -   -   271,316   11.20  

1470  Other current assets    23,051   0.98   18,630   0.77  

11XX  Total current assets    836,065    35.66   1,096,705   45.28  

  Non current assets           

1510 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss -non-current 

 
6(6) 

 
39,169   1.67  

 
10,882  

 
0.45  

1517 
 Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income -non-current 

 
6(7) 

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

1550 
 Investments accounted for using equity 

method 

 
6(8) 

 
52,920   2.26  

 
106,144  

 
4.38  

1600  Property, plant and equipment   6(9)  1,259,534   53.72   1,123,728   46.39  

1755  Right-of-use assets  6(10)  8,019   0.34   9,174   0.38  

1780  Intangible assets  6(11)  5,583   0.24   5,149   0.21  

1840  Deferred income tax assets  6(24)3  23,058   0.99   23,730   0.98  

1900  Other noncurrent assets  6(12), 7  120,089   5.12   46,780   1.93  

15XX  Total noncurrent assets    1,508,372    64.34   1,325,587   54.72  

1XXX  Total assets    $  2,344,437    100.00   $  2,422,292   100.00  

(Continued) 



 

(Continued)                           Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation 

Parent-company-only Balance Sheets 

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

December 31, 2022 and 2021 

      December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Codes  Liabilities and Equity  Notes  Amount  %  Amount  % 

  Current liabilities           

2100  Short-term loans  6(13)  $    106,526   4.54   $    224,225   9.26  

2151  Notes payables  6(14)  322   0.01   17,480   0.72  

2152  Other notes payables  6(14)  48,133   2.05   4,040   0.17  

2170  Accounts payables  6(14)  173,809   7.41   195,644   8.08  

2200  Other accounts payables  6(15)  132,437   5.65   106,453   4.39  

2220 
 Other accounts payables from related 

parties  

 
6(15), 7 

 
53   -  

 
4  

 
-  

2230  Income tax payables    25,460   1.09   18,025   0.74  

2250  Provision for warranty obligations-current   6(16)  10,528   0.45   8,309   0.34  

2281  Lease liabilities from third parties   6(10)  4,396   0.19   4,141   0.17  

2282  Lease liabilities from related parties   6(10), 7  -   -   1,094   0.05  

2300  Other current liabilities  6(17)  2,867   0.12   56,171   2.32  

2322  Current portion of long-term loans payable   6(18)  66,231   2.83   112,945   4.66  

21XX  Total current liabilities    570,762    24.34   748,531   30.90  

  Non-current liabilities           

2540  Long-term loans  6(18)  416,571   17.77   416,158   17.18  

2570  Deferred income tax payable  6(24)3  4,288   0.18   4,722   0.20  

2581 
 Lease liabilities from third parties 

-non current 

 
6(10) 

 
4,812   0.21  

 
5,143  

 
0.21  

2630  Long-term deferred revenue    1,875   0.08   2,557   0.11  

2640  Net defined benefit liabilities -non current  6(20)  19,459   0.83   32,780   1.35  

2645  Guarantee deposits    753   0.03   459   0.02  

25XX  Total noncurrent liabilities    447,758    19.10   461,819   19.07  

2XXX  Total liabilities    1,018,520    43.44   1,210,350   49.97  

  Equity           

3100  Capital Stock  6(21)1         

3110  Common stock    823,608   35.13   823,608   34.00  

3200  Capital surplus  6(21)2  10,552   0.45   51,718   2.13  

3300  Retained earnings           

3310  Appropriated as legal capital reserve     141,662   6.04   134,181   5.54  

3320  Appropriated as special capital reserve    4,369   0.19   1,663   0.07  

3350  Unappropriated earnings  6(21)3  345,726   14.75   205,141   8.47  

3400  Others    -   -   (4,369)  (0.18) 

3XXX  Total equity    1,325,917    56.56   1,211,942   50.03  

  Total    $  2,344,437    100.00   $  2,422,292   100.00  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. 

 



 

Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation 

Parent-company-only Statements of Comprehensive Income 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, except for earnings per share) 

 

 
 

    2022  2021 

Codes  Items  Notes  Amount  %  Amount  % 

4000  Operating revenues  6(22), 7  $  1,981,438   100.00   $  1,728,909   100.00  

5000  Cost of revenues  7  (1,669,377)  (84.25)  (1,497,195)  (86.60) 

5900  Gross profit    312,061    15.75   231,714   13.40  

5910  Unrealized gain from sale    (7,717)  (0.39)  (9,700)  (0.56) 

5920  Realized gain from sale    7,636    0.39   10,056   0.58  

5950  Gross profit    311,980   15.75   232,070   13.42  

  Operating Expenses           

6100  Sales and marketing  7  (85,313)  (4.31)  (72,605)  (4.20) 

6200  General and administrative  7  (97,176)  (4.90)  (62,176)  (3.60) 

6300  Research and development    (24,713)  (1.25)  (28,101)  (1.62) 

6450  Expected credit gain(loss)    1,068   0.05   (960)  (0.06) 

6000  Total operating expenses    (206,134)   (10.41)  (163,842)  (9.48) 

6900  Operating income    105,846   5.34   68,228   3.94  

  Non-operating income and expenses           

7010  Other income  6(23)1, 7  7,771   0.39   17,614   1.02  

7020  Other gains and loss  6(23)2  185,536   9.37   (8,921)  (0.51) 

7050  Finance costs  6(23)4, 7  (6,805)  (0.34)  (8,572)  (0.50) 

7070  Share of profits of associates  6(8)  (9,653)  (0.49)  12,616   0.73  

7100  Interest income    257   0.01   23   -  

7000  Total non-operating income and expenses    177,106    8.94   12,760   0.74  

7900  Income before tax    282,952   14.28   80,988   4.68  

7950  Less: Income tax expense  6(24)1  (19,213)  (0.97)  (12,336)  (0.71) 

8200  Net income  6(23)  263,739    13.31   68,652   3.97  

  Other comprehensive income (loss）           

8310 
 Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 

profit or loss: 
   

       

8311  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation  6(20)2(5)  13,217   0.66   (2,553)  (0.15) 

8316  Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments in  

equity instruments at fair value through  

other comprehensive income 

 

6(7) 

 

-   -  

 

6,536   0.38  

8349 
 Income tax related to items that will not be  

reclassified subsequently 
 6(24)2  (2,643)  (0.13) 

 
511  

 
0.03  

8360 
 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit 

or loss: 
      

   
 

8361  Exchange differences arising on translation  

of foreign operations 
   4,369   0.22  

 
(1,038)  (0.06) 

8399  Income tax related to items that may be 

reclassified subsequently 
 

6(23)2 
 

-   -      -   -  

8300  Other comprehensive income (loss), net    14,943    0.75   3,456   0.20  

8500  Total comprehensive income (loss)    $    278,682    14.06   $     72,108   4.17  

             
  Earnings per share  6(27)         

9750  Basic earnings per share    $       3.20     $       0.83    

9850  Diluted earnings per share    $       3.16     $       0.83    
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. 



 

Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation 

Parent-company-only Statements of Changes in Equity 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. 

        Retained earnings  Total other equity interest   

Item 

 

Codes 

 

Capital Stock-

Common stock 

3110 

 

Capital 

Surplus 

3200 

 

Legal 

reserve 

3310 

 

Special 

Reserve 

3320 

 

Unappropriated  

retained 

earnings 

3350  

Total 

3300 

 
Exchange 

differences 

on translation 

of foreign 

financial 

statements  

3410 

 Unrealized 

gains(loss) on 

financial assets 

measured at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

income 

3420 

 

Total 

3400 

 

Total equity 

3XXX 

Balance on January 1, 2021  A1  $ 823,608   $ 51,669   $ 128,264   $     -  $ 203,796   $ 332,060  $    (3,331)  $        1,668   $  (1,663)  $ 1,205,674  

Appropriations of earnings of legal reserve  B1  -   -   5,917   -   (5,917)  -   -   -   -   -  

Appropriations of earnings of special reserve  B3  -   -   -   1,663   (1,663)  -   -   -   -   -  

Cash dividends  B5  -   -   -   -   (65,889)  (65,889)  -   -   -   (65,889) 

Changes in capital surplus  C17  -   49   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   49  

Net income for the year  D1  -   -   -   -   68,652   68,652   -   -   -   68,652  

Other comprehensive income(loss) for the year  D3  -   -   -   -   (2,042)  (2,042)  (1,038)  6,536   5,498   3,456  

Total comprehensive income(loss)  D5  -   -   -   -   66,610   66,610   (1,038)  6,536   5,498   72,108  

Disposal of investments in equity instruments 

designated at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

 Q1  -  

 

-  

 

-   -  

 

8,204   8,204   -   (8,204)  (8,204)  -  

Balance on December 31, 2021  Z1  823,608   51,718   134,181   1,663   205,141   340,985    (4,369)  -    (4,369)  1,211,942  

Appropriations of earnings of legal reserve  B1  -   -   7,481   -   (7,481)  -   -   -   -   -  

Appropriations of earnings of special reserve  B3  -   -   -   2,706   (2,706)  -   -   -   -   -  

Cash dividends  B5  -   -   -   -   (123,541)  (123,541)  -   -   -   (123,541) 

Cash distributed from capital surplus  C15  -   (41,180)  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (41,180) 

Changes in capital surplus  C17  -   14   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   14  

Net income for the year  D1  -   -   -   -   263,739   263,739   -   -   -   263,739  

Other comprehensive income(loss) for the year  D3  -   -   -   -   10,574   10,574   4,369   -   4,369   14,943  

Total comprehensive income(loss)  D5  -   -   -   -   274,313   274,313   4,369   -   4,369   278,682  

Balance on December 31, 2022  Z1  $ 823,608   $ 10,552   $ 141,662   $   4,369   $ 345,726   $ 491,757   $        -   $           -   $      -   $ 1,325,917  



 

Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation 

Parent-company-only  Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollar) 

 

Codes  Items  2022  2021 

AAAA  Cash flows from operating activities:     

A10000  Income before income tax  $     282,952  $     80,988 

A20000  Adjustments for:     

A20010  Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss)     

A20100  Depreciation expense  73,768   79,774  

A20200  Amortization expenses  3,468   3,786  

A20300  Expected credit (reversed gain) loss  (1,068)  960  

A20400  Net loss(profit) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  18,077   51  

A20900  Interest expense  6,627   8,380  

A21200  Interest income  (257)  (23) 

A21300  Dividend revenue  -   (257) 

A22400  
Share of loss(profit) of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted 

for using equity method 
 

9,653  
 

(12,616) 

A22500  Loss (gain) on disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment  (190,010)  10,483  

A23700  Reversal of impairment loss recognized in profit or loss, non-financial assets  (476)  (689) 

A23900  Unrealized gain from sales  7,717   9,700  

A24000  Realized gain from sales  (7,636)  (10,056) 

A24100  Unrealized loss(gain) on foreign exchange  2,081   (334) 

A29900  Others (government grants)  (682)  (682) 

A20010  Total adjustments to reconcile profit(loss)  (78,738)  88,477  

A30000  Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     

A31000  Changes in operating assets     

A31130  Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable  8,765   (43,069) 

A31150  Increase in accounts receivable  (14,610)  (104,380) 

A31180  Decrease (Increase) in other receivables  75   (468) 

A31200  Decrease (Increase) in inventories  33,583   (110,929) 

A31240  Increase in other current assets  (4,421)  (10,992) 

A31990  Decrease (Increase) in other operating assets  430   (2,061) 

A31000  Total changes in operating assets  23,822   (271,899) 

A32000  Changes in operating liabilities     

A32130  Decrease (Increase) in notes payable  (17,158)  8,596  

A32150  Decrease (Increase) in accounts payable  (21,268)  69,211  

A32180  Increase in other payables  30,980   21,030  

A32200  Increase (Decrease) in provisions  2,219   (70) 

A32230  Decrease (Increase) in other current liabilities   (53,330)  54,602  

A32240  Decrease in net defined benefit liability   (104)  (115) 

A32000  Total changes in operating liabilities  (58,661)  153,254  

A30000  Total changes in operating assets and liabilities  (34,839)  (118,645) 

A20000  Total adjustments  (113,577)  (30,168) 

A33000  Cash flow generated from operations  169,375   50,820  

A33100  Interest received  257   23  

A33300  Interest paid  (9,343)  (8,890) 

A33500  Income tax paid  (14,184)  (10,968) 

AAAA  Net cash flows generated by (used in) operating activities  146,105   30,985  



 

Codes  Items  2022  2021 

  (continued)     

       

BBBB  Cash flows from investing activities     

B00020  
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through  

other comprehensive income  
 

-   12,155  

B00030 
 

Proceeds from capital return of financial assets at fair value  

through other comprehensive income 
 

-   882  

B00100  Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  (2,854)  -  

B02700  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (116,283)  (58,667) 

B02800  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  461,901   827  

B03700  Increase in refundable deposits  (2,100)  -  

B03800  Decrease in refundable deposits  -   1,308  

B04500  Acquisition of intangible assets  (828)  (300) 

B05000  Cash received through merger  45   -  

B06000  Long-term Lease payments receivable  1,920   1,920  

B06800  Decrease in other noncurrent assets  (4)  278  

B07100  Increase in prepayments for business facilities  (120,916)  (27,512) 

B07600  Dividends received  4,450   257  

BBBB  Net cash flow generated by (used in) investing activities.  225,331   (68,852) 

CCCC  Cash flows from financing activities     

C00100  Increase in short-term loans  624,098   683,153  

C00200  Decrease in short-term loans  (741,805)  (495,247) 

C01600  Proceeds from long-term bank loans  80,000   -  

C01700  Repayment of long-term bank loans  (126,302)  (102,016) 

C03100  Decrease in guarantee deposits  294   449  

C04020  Repayment of the principal portion of lease liabilities  (6,814)  (6,819) 

C04500  Cash dividends  (164,721)  (65,889) 

C09900  Others  14   49  

CCCC  Net cash flow generated by (used in) financing activities  (335,236)  13,680  

DDDD  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (845)  (7) 

EEEE  Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  35,355   (24,194) 

E00100  Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year  40,583   64,777  

E00200  Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year  $     75,938  $    40,583  

E00210  Cash and cash equivalents on parent company only balance sheets  $     75,938   $    40,583  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statement. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

To the Board of Directors of Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation: 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation and its 

subsidiaries(“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 

and 2021, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows 

for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 

accounting policies 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 

respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its 

consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with the Regulation Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers 

and with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), International Accounting 

Standards (“IAS”), Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations 

Committee (“IFRIC”) and the former Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”) endorsed and 

issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 

Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted 

in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are the further described in the 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.  

We are independent of the Croup in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified 

Public Accountant of the Republic of China (the “Norm”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significant in our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. These matters 

were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Key audit matter for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 

2022 is stated as follows: 

Allowance for losses on Accounts Receivable 

The management’s judgment on the recognition of allowance for losses on accounts receivable is 

based on the evaluation of both internal and external information, as such, it was one of the key audit 

matters for our audit. Therefore, our principal audit procedures included testing the effectiveness of 

controls related to accounts receivable, obtaining the ledgers and records, selecting samples for 

obtaining confirmation letters; obtaining aging analysis of accounts receivable and verifying the 

accuracy of relevant documents and the aging intervals, reviewing the provision for bad debts on the 

ledger to ensure that it is provided based on the loss rate, and evaluating whether management's 

recognition of impairment losses on accounts receivable is correct. 



4 

Please refer to Note 4 “Summary of significant accounting policies－Accounts receivables”, Note 

6(3) in notes to consolidated financial statements. 

Valuation of inventories 

IInventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, the rapid evolution of 

technology and the fluctuation of market may lead to obsolescence and render products unmarketable. 

As inventory must be measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, management must assess 

the amount of inventory on the balance sheet date that is impaired due to normal wear and tear, 

obsolescence or lack of market sales value, and write down the inventory costs to net realizable value. 

The inventory valuation is mainly based on past experience and estimated future product demand. 

Therefore, the auditor pays particular attention to whether the company complies with International 

Accounting Standards 2 (IAS2) in measuring inventory at the lower of cost and net realizable value 

and whether management's provision for inventory write-downs is reasonable. 

The audit procedures performed by the auditor include: 

1. Testing the age of inventory on the balance sheet date, and comparing the provision for 

inventory obsolescence with the previous year, analyzing the reasons for differences, and 

checking the relevant data used to calculate the provision for inventory write-downs, and 

comparing the historical provision with the actual offsetting differences. 

2. On a sample basis, comparing the latest actual selling price of inventory at the end of the period 

with its book value to ensure whether the inventory has been evaluated at the lower of cost and 

net realizable value. 

3. Comparing the ending inventory balance on the end of the year with the inventory details for 

the current year to verify the existence and completeness of inventory in the end of the year. By 

observing annual physical counts of goods, the auditors assess the reasonableness of the amount 

of allowance for inventory write-down. 

Please refer to Note 4 “Summary of significant accounting policies－Inventories”, Note 6(4) in notes 

to the consolidated financial statements. 

Other Matter 

Shuang-Bang Corporation has additionally prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as 

of the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, on which we have issued an unqualified opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the preparation of Financial Reports by 

Securities Issuers and with the IFRSs, IASs, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the 

Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as 

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group 

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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Those charged with governance (including members of the Audit Committee) are responsible for 

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of 

China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 

financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we 

exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements. We are responsible for the directions, supervision and performance of the 

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 

December 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partners on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Jim Chen Ko 

and Tzu Yang Wang. 

 

Weyong International CPAs&Co. 

 

Taichung, Taiwan 

Republic of China 

 

March 17, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

Notice to Readers 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position, 

financial performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic 

of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial 

statements are those generally applied in the Republic of China. 

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been 

translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between 

the English version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language 

independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements shall prevail. 
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheets(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

December 31, 2022 and 2021 

 

         

      December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Codes  Assets  Notes  Amount  %  Amount  % 

  Current Assets           

1100  Cash and cash equivalents  6(1)  $    134,236   5.44   $    105,980   4.12  

1137  Financial assets at amortized cost -current  6(2)  1,200   0.05   1,228   0.05  

1150  Notes receivables, net   6(3)  92,441   3.74   104,873   4.07  

1152  Other notes receivables   6(3)  35   -   465   0.02  

1160  Notes receivables from related parties, net  6(3), 7  37   -   741   0.03  

1170  Accounts receivables, net  6(3)  351,942   14.26   340,008   13.20  

1180 
 Accounts receivables from related parties, 

net 

 
6(3), 7 

 
13,634   0.55  

 
28,120   1.09  

1200  Other receivables     632   0.03   340   0.01  

1210  Other receivables from related parties  7  130   0.01   82   -  

130X  Inventory   6(4)  333,091   13.49   373,994   14.52  

1460  Noncurrent assets held for sale, net  6(5)  -   -   271,316   10.54  

1470  Other current assets    24,665   1.00   19,818   0.77  

11XX  Total current assets    952,043    38.57   1,246,965    48.42  

  Noncurrent Assets           

1510 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss -non-current 

 
6(6) 

 
39,169   1.59  

 
49,869   1.94  

1517 
 Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income -non-current 

 
6(7) 

 
-   -  

 
-   -  

1600  Property, plant and equipment  6(8)  1,289,301   52.23   1,162,166   45.13  

1755  Right-of-use assets  6(9)  24,887   1.01   29,819   1.16  

1780  Intangible assets  6(10)  6,390   0.26   6,303   0.24  

1840  Deferred income tax assets  6(23)3  35,076   1.42   31,884   1.24  

1900  Other noncurrent assets  6(11), 7  121,474   4.92   48,203   1.87  

15XX  Total noncurrent assets    1,516,297    61.43   1,328,244    51.58  

1XXX  Total assets    $  2,468,340    100.00   $  2,575,209    100.00  

             

(Continued) 
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheets (In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

December 31, 2022 and 2021 

 

      December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Codes  Liabilities and equity  Notes  Amount  %  Amount  % 

  Current liabilities           

2100  Short-term loans  6(12)  $    118,576   4.80   $    234,275   9.10  

2151  Notes payables  6(13)  4,291   0.17   23,149   0.90  

2152  Other notes payables  6(13)  48,259   1.96   4,175   0.16  

2170  Accounts payables  6(13)  180,100   7.30   209,292   8.13  

2200  Other accounts payables  6(14)  146,389   5.93   124,878   4.85  

2230  Income tax payables    25,466   1.03   20,723   0.80  

2250  Provision for warranty obligations-current  6(15)  12,444   0.50   10,133   0.39  

2281  Lease liabilities from third parties  6(9)  10,306   0.42   9,628   0.37  

2282  Lease liabilities from related parties   6(9), 7  -   -   1,094   0.04  

2300  Other current liabilities  6(16)  11,916   0.48   58,865   2.29  

2322  Current portion of long-term loans payable  6(17)  71,476   2.90   117,940   4.58  

21XX  Total current liabilities    629,223    25.49   814,152    31.61  

  Noncurrent liabilities           

2540  Long-term loans  6(17)  425,753   17.25   430,586   16.72  

2570  Deferred income tax payable  6(23)3  4,465   0.18   4,824   0.20  

2581 
 Lease liabilities from third parties 

-non current 

 
6(9) 

 
14,877   0.60  

 
19,346   0.75  

2630  Long-term deferred revenue     1,875   0.08   2,557   0.10  

2640  Net defined benefit liability -non current  6(19)  19,459   0.79   32,780   1.27  

2645  Guarantee deposits    853   0.03   558   0.02  

25XX  Total noncurrent liabilities    467,282    18.93   490,651    19.06  

2XXX  Total liabilities    1,096,505    44.42   1,304,803    50.67  

 
 Equity Attributable to Shareholders Of 

The Parent 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3100  Capital Stock  6(20)1         

3110  Common stock    823,608   33.37   823,608   31.98  

3200  Capital surplus  6(20)2  10,552   0.43   51,718   2.01  

3300  Retained earnings           

3310  Appropriated as legal capital reserve     141,662   5.74   134,181   5.21  

3320  Appropriated as special capital reserve    4,369   0.18   1,663   0.06  

3350  Unappropriated earnings  6(20)3  345,726   14.00   205,141   7.97  

3400  Others    -   -   (4,369)  (0.17) 

31XX 
 Equity attributable to shareholders of the 

parent 

 
 

 
1,325,917    53.72  

 
1,211,942    47.06  

36XX  Non-Controlling Interests    45,918   1.86   58,464   2.27  

3XXX  Total equity    1,371,835    55.58   1,270,406    49.33  

  Total liabilities and equity    $  2,468,340    100.00   $  2,575,209    100.00  

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, except for earnings per share) 

      2022  2021 

Codes  Items  Notes  Amount  %  Amount  % 

4000  Operating revenues  6(21), 7  $  2,186,641   100.00   $  2,013,489   100.00  

5000  Cost of revenues  7  (1,879,287)  (85.94)  (1,736,266)  (86.23) 

5900  Gross profit    307,354   14.06   277,223   13.77  

  Operating expenses           

6100  Sales and marketing    (92,761)  (4.24)  (84,441)  (4.19) 

6200  General and administrative    (108,517)  (4.96)  (74,391)  (3.70) 

6300  Research and development    (27,402)  (1.25)  (31,059)  (1.54) 

6450  Expected credit gain(loss)    2,328   0.10   (2,769)  (0.14) 

6000  Total operating expenses    (226,352)  (10.35)  (192,660)  (9.57) 

6900  Operating income    81,002   3.71   84,563   4.20  

  Non-operating income and expenses           

7010  Other income  6(22)1, 7  8,440   0.38   19,300   0.96  

7020  Other gains and loss  6(22)2  189,958   8.69   (3,417)  (0.17) 

7050  Finance costs  6(22)4, 7  (7,609)  (0.35)  (9,481)  (0.47) 

7100  Interest income    383   0.02   41   -  

7000  Total non-operating income and expenses    191,172    8.74   6,443    0.32  

7900  Income before tax    272,174   12.45   91,006   4.52  

7950  Less: Income tax expense  6(23)1  (15,431)  (0.71)  (15,050)  (0.75) 

8200  Net income  6(22)  256,743    11.74   75,956    3.77  

  Other comprehensive income (loss）           

8310 
 Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit 

or loss: 
    

 
 
    

8311  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation   6(19)2, (5)  13,217   0.60   (2,553)  (0.13) 

8316  Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments in  

equity instruments at fair value through  

other comprehensive income  
 

6(7) 

 

- - -   6,536   0.32  

8349 
 Income tax related to items that will not be  

reclassified subsequently 
 6(23)2  (2,643)  (0.12) 

 
511   0.03  

8360 
 Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or 

loss: 
      

 
   

8361  Exchange differences arising on translation  

of foreign operations 
   4,369   0.20  

 
(1,038)  (0.05) 

8399  Income tax related to items that may be 

reclassified subsequently 
 

6(23)2 
 

-   -      -   -  

8300  Other comprehensive income (loss), net    14,943    0.68   3,456    0.17  

8500  Total comprehensive income    $    271,68    12.42   $     79,412    3.94  

8600  Net income attribute to:           

8610  Shareholders of the parent    $    263,73    12.06   $     68,652    3.41  

8620  Non-controlling interests    $     (6,996)   (0.32)  $      7,304    0.36  

8700  Total comprehensive income attribute to:           

8710  Shareholders of the parent    $    278,68    12.74   $     72,108    3.58  

8720  Non-controlling interests    $     (6,996)   (0.32)  $      7,304    0.36  

  Earnings per share  6(26)         

9750  Basic earnings per share    $       3.20     $       0.83    

9850  Diluted earnings per share    $       3.16     $       0.83    

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

 
 

 
  

Equity attribute to the shareholders of the parent company 

 
 

  

        Retained earnings  Total other equity interest       

Item 

 

C o d e s 

 

Capital Stock-

Common stock 

3110 

 

Capital 

Surplus 

3200 

 

Legal 

reserve 

3310 

 

Special 

Reserve 

3320 

 

Unappropriated  
retained 

earnings 

3350  

Total 

3300 

 

Exchange 
differences on 

translation of 
foreign financial 

statements  

3410 

 

Unrealized gains(loss) 
on financial assets 

measured at fair value 
through other 

comprehensive income 

3420 

 

Total 

3400 

 

Subtotal of 
equity 

attributable to the 
shareholders of 

the parent 

31XX 

 

Non-
controlling 

interests 

36XX 

  

 
 

 
 

Total equity 

3XXX 

Balance on January 1, 2021  A1  $ 823,608   $ 51,660   $ 128,264   $      -   $ 203,796   $ 332,060   $     (3,331)  $          1,668   $  (1,663)  $ 1,205,674   $  51,160   $ 1,256,834  

Appropriations of earnings of legal reserve  B1  -   -   5,917   -   (5,917)  -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Appropriations of earnings of special reserve  B3  -   -   -   1,663   (1,663)  -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Cash dividends  B5  -   -   -   -   (65,889)  (65,889)  -   -   -   (65,889)  -   (65,889) 

Changes in capital surplus  C17  -   49   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   49   -   49  

Net income for the year  D1  -   -   -   -   68,652   68,652   -   -   -   68,652   7,304   75,956  

Other comprehensive income(loss) for the year  D3  -   -   -   -   (2,042)  (2,042)  (1,038)  6,536   5,498   3,456   -   3,456  

Total comprehensive income(loss)  D5  -   -   -   -   66,610   66,610   (1,038)  6,536   5,498   72,108   7,304   79,412  

Disposal of investments in equity instruments 

designated at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

 Q1  -   -   -   -   8,204   8,204   -   (8,204)  (8,204)  -   -   -  

Balance on December 31, 2021  Z1  823,608   51,718   134,181   1,663   205,141   340,985    (4,369)  -    (4,369)  1,211,942   58,464   1,270,406  

Appropriations of earnings of legal reserve  B1  -   -   7,481   -   (7,481)  -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Appropriations of earnings of special reserve  B3  -   -   -   2,706   (2,706)  -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Cash dividends  B5  -   -   -   -   (123,541)  (123,541)  -   -   -   (123,541)  -   (123,541) 

Cash distributed from capital surplus  C15  -   (41,180)  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (41,180)  -   (41,180) 

Changes in capital surplus  C17  -   14   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   14   -   14  

Net income for the year  D1  -   -   -   -   263,739   263,739   -   -   -   263,739   (6,996)  256,743  

Other comprehensive income(loss) for the year  D3  -   -   -   -   10,574   10,574   4,369   -   4,369   14,943   -   14,943  

Total comprehensive income(loss)  D5  -   -   -   -   274,313   274,313   4,369   -   4,369   278,682   (6,996)  271,686  

Cash dividends received by subsidiaries from 

the parent company 

 O1  -  
 -   -  

 
-  

 
-   -  

 -   
-   -  

 
-  

 
(5,550) 

 
(5,550) 

Balance on December 31, 2022  Z1  $ 823,608   $ 10,552   $ 141,662   $   4,369   $ 345,726   $ 491,757   $         -   $                 $        $ 1,325,917   $  45,918   $ 1,371,835  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

 

Codes  Items  2022  2021 

AAAA  Cash flows from operating activities     

A10000  Income before income tax $              272,174   $          91,006  

A20000  Adjustments for:     

A20010  Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)     

A20100  Depreciation expense  91,300   98,068  

A20200  Amortization expenses  3,815   4,087  

A20300  Expected credit (reversed gain) loss   (2,328)  2,769  

A20400  
Net loss(profit) on financial assets at fair value through  

profit or loss 
 

18,077   (6,051) 

A20900  Interest expense  7,430   9,288  

A21200  Interest income  (383)  (41) 

A21300  Dividend income  -   (257) 

A22500  
Loss (gain) on disposal or retirement of property, plant  

and equipment 
 

(190,054)  10,550  

A23700  
Reversal of impairment loss recognized in profit or loss,  

non-financial assets 
 

(476)  (689) 

A24100  Unrealized loss(gain) on foreign exchange  2,611   (117) 

A29900  Others(government grants)  (682)  (682) 

A20010  Total adjustments to reconcile profit(loss)  (70,690)  116,925  

A30000  Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     

A31000  Changes in operating assets     

A31130  Decrease (Increase) in notes receivable  13,136   (47,460) 

A31150  Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable  2,742   (112,834) 

A31180  Increase in other receivables  (340)  (84) 

A31200  Decrease (Increase) in inventories  40,903   (109,254) 

A31240  Increase in other current assets  (4,847)  (10,261) 

A31990  Decrease (Increase) in other operating assets  430   (2,061) 

A31000  Total changes in operating assets  52,024   (281,954) 

A32000  Changes in operating liabilities     

A32130  Decrease (Increase) in notes payable  (18,858)  6,472  

A32150  Decrease (Increase) in accounts payable  (28,626)  77,502  

A32180  Increase in other payables  26,457   25,758  

A32200  Increase in provisions  2,273   31  

A32230  Decrease (Increase) in other current liabilities  (46,968)  54,657  

A32240  Decrease in net defined benefit liability  (104)  (115) 

A32000  Total changes in operating liabilities  (65,826)  164,305  

A30000  Total changes in operating assets and liabilities  (13,802)  (117,649) 

A20000  Total adjustments  (84,492)  (724) 

A33000  Cash flow generated from operations  187,682   90,282  

A33100  Interest received  383   41  

A33300  Interest paid  (10,148)  (9,809) 

A33500  Income tax paid  (16,882)  (10,312) 

AAAA  Net cash flows generated by operating activities  161,035   70,202  

  (Continued)     
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Codes  Items  2022  2021 

       

       

       

BBBB  Cash flows from investing activities     

B00020  
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through  

other comprehensive income  
 

-  
 

12,155  

B00030 
 

Proceeds from capital return of financial assets at fair value  

through other comprehensive income 
 

-  
 

882  

B00050  Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortized costs  28   -  

B00100  
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or  

loss 
 

(2,854) 
 

-  

B02700  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (117,566)  (62,301) 

B02800  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  462,002   827  

B03700  Increase in refundable deposits  (2,100)  -  

B03800  Decrease in refundable deposits  -   1,128  

B04500  Acquisition of intangible assets  (828)  (715) 

B06800  Decrease in other noncurrent assets  -   303  

B07100  Increase in prepayments for business facilities  (120,916)  (27,546) 

B07600  Dividends received  -   257  

BBBB  Net cash generated by (used in) investing activities.  217,766   (75,010) 

CCCC  Cash flows from financing activities     

C00100  Increase in short-term loans  626,098   713,303  

C00200  Decrease in short-term loans  (741,805)  (535,396) 

C01600  Proceeds from long-term bank loans  80,000   6,000  

C01700  Repayment of long-term bank loans  (131,297)  (122,906) 

C03000  Increase in guaranteed deposits received  295   448  

C04020  Repayment of the principal portion of lease liabilities  (12,453)  (12,296) 

C04500  Cash dividends  (170,271)  (65,889) 

C09900  Others  14   49  

CCCC  Net cash used in financing activities  (349,419)  (16,687) 

DDDD  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (1,126)  (170) 

EEEE  Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  28,256   (21,665) 

E00100  Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year  105,980   127,645  

E00200  Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year  $         134,236   $         105,980  

E00210  Cash and cash equivalents on consolidated balance sheets  $         134,236   $         105,980  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corp. 

Table of 2022 Earnings Distribution  

 

                                                       Unit: NTD 

 

Item  Amount 

Beginning retained earnings  71,412,910 

Add:   

Net income during the year 263,739,080    

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan recognized 

as retained earnings  
10,573,398   

Net income and other items during the period as the 

undistributed earnings for the year  
 274,312,478 

Less:   

Recognition of legal reserves   (27,431,248) 

Add:   

Reversal of special earnings reserve   4,369,133  

Distributable earnings  322,663,273    

Distributable items:   

Dividends - cash (NT$1.2 per share) 
 

(98,832,991) 

Undistributed earnings at the end of the period 
 

223,830,282 

 

Note: 

1. The earnings from the most recent year are prioritized for distribution.   

2. The above dividends are calculated with 82,360,826 ordinary shares issued by the Company as of March 17, 

2023.  

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman:                Manager:                  Chief Accounting Officer: 

 

 

 

  

Attachment 4 
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corp. 

Comparison of Practical Guides on Corporate Governance Before and 

After Amendment  

Original clause  Clause after amendment Explanation  

Article 3-1 

First item omitted  

The aforesaid corporate governance matters 

should at least include the following:  

I. Handling of matters relating to board meetings 

and shareholders meetings in compliance with 

law; 

II. Preparation of minutes of the board meetings 

and shareholders meetings; 

III. Assistance to onboarding and continuing 

education of directors; 

IV. Provision of data required for performance of 

duties by directors;  

V. Assistance to directors in compliance of laws; 

VI. Other matters specified by the Articles of 

Incorporation or contracts. 

Article 3-1 

First item omitted  

The aforesaid corporate governance matters 

should at least include the following:  

I. Handling of matters relating to board meetings 

and shareholders meetings in compliance with 

law; 

II. Preparation of minutes of the board meetings 

and shareholders meetings; 

III. Assistance in onboarding and continuing 

education of directors and supervisors; 

IV. Provision of data required for performance of 

duties by directors and supervisors; 

V. Assistance to directors and supervisors in 

compliance of law; 

VI. Reporting to the Board of Directors regarding 

the outcome of reviews on whether independent 

directors’ nominations and qualifications upon 

election and in office comply with relevant laws 

and regulations; 

VII. Handling of director changes; 

VIII. Other matters specified by the Articles of 

Incorporation or contracts. 

Amended in 

alignment with 

laws and 

regulations  

Article 6 

The Company’s Board of Directors should 

properly arrange the agenda and procedures of a 

shareholders’ meeting, determine the principles 

and the process for shareholders to nominate 

directors and for shareholders’ meetings to submit 

proposals, and properly handle the proposals put 

forward by shareholders according to laws. 

Shareholders’ meetings should be convened at 

convenient venues. Ample time should be 

reserved so that suitable and competent personnel 

is appointed to process registrations. It is not 

allowed to request additional certificates or 

documents other than those shareholders present 

for attendance. Reasonable time should be given 

and shareholders should be provided with 

appropriate speaking opportunities for discussion 

of each proposal. 

Omitted hereinafter 

Article 6  

The Company’s Board of Directors should 

properly arrange the agenda and procedures of a 

shareholders’ meeting, determine the principles 

and the process for shareholders to nominate 

directors and supervisors and for shareholders’ 

meetings to submit proposals, and properly handle 

the proposals put forward by shareholders 

according to laws. Shareholders’ meetings should 

be convened at convenient venues and ideally 

supplemented by video conference. Ample time 

should be reserved so that suitable and competent 

personnel is appointed to process registrations. It 

is not allowed to request additional certificates or 

documents other than those shareholders present 

for attendance. Reasonable time should be given 

and shareholders should be provided with 

appropriate speaking opportunities for discussion 

of each proposal.  

Omitted hereinafter 

Amended in 

alignment with 

laws and 

regulations  

Article 10 

Omitted from the first item to the third item 

 

The aforesaid rules should include the control 

measures on trading of shares from the day when 

the Company’s insiders learn about the 

Company’s financials or relevant information on 

performance.  

Article 10 

Omitted from the first item to the third item 

 

The aforesaid rules should include the 

control measures on trading of shares from the 

day when the Company’s insiders learn about the 

Company’s financials or relevant information on 

performance. This includes (but not limits to) the 

blackout period for shares trading by directors 

Amended in 

alignment with 

laws and 

regulations  

Attachment 5 
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Original clause  Clause after amendment Explanation  

thirty days before the announcement of annual 

financial reports and fifteen days before 

announcement of quarterly financial reports.   

A new article  

 
Article 10-1 

The Company should report directors’ 

remuneration at shareholders’ meetings by 

including remuneration policy, details of 

individual packages, amounts and relation with 

performance review results.  

Amended in 

alignment with 

laws and 

regulations  

Article 12 

The Company should observe relevant laws 

and regulations for significant financial and 

business activities such as asset acquisitions or 

disposals, loaning of funds, making endorsements 

and guarantees. Relevant procedures should be 

established and submitted to shareholders’ 

meetings for approval to protect the rights of 

shareholders.  

In event of mergers or open tenders, the 

Company should adhere to relevant laws and 

regulations and pay attention to the fairness and 

reasonableness of the merger or open tender plans 

and transactions, information disclosure and 

robustness of the Company’s financial structure 

afterwards.  

The Company’s personnel handling the aforesaid 

matters should pay attention to conflict of interest 

and recusal.  

Article 12 

  The Company should observe relevant laws 

and regulations for significant financial and 

business activities such as asset acquisitions or 

disposals, loaning of funds, making endorsements 

and guarantees. Relevant procedures should be 

established and submitted to shareholders’ 

meetings for approval to protect the rights of 

shareholders.  

  In event of mergers or open tenders, the 

Company should adhere to relevant laws and 

regulations and pay attention to the fairness and 

reasonableness of the merger or open tender plans 

and transactions, information disclosure and 

robustness of the Company’s financial structure 

afterwards.  

  When the Company’s management or major 

shareholders are involved in mergers and 

acquisitions (M&As), independent lawyers shall 

issue a legal opinion on whether Audit Committee 

members who review the aforesaid M&A matters 

comply with Article 3 of the Regulations 

Governing Appointment of Independent Directors 

and Compliance Matters for Public Companies, 

are not related parties to the M&A counterparty or 

have conflict of interest sufficient to influence 

independence, whether the design and 

implementation of relevant procedures conform 

with relevant laws and whether information is 

fully disclosed according to relevant laws.  

  The abovementioned lawyers should meet the 

requirements set in Article 3 of the Regulations 

Governing Appointment of Independent Directors 

and Compliance Matters for Public Companies 

and may not be related parties to the M&A 

counterparty or have conflict of interest sufficient 

to influence independence.    

The Company’s personnel handling acquisitions 

or open tender matters should pay attention to 

conflict of interest and recusal.  

Amended in 

alignment with 

laws and 

regulations  

Article 17 

The business dealings between the Company 

and affiliated enterprises should be based on the 

principle of fairness and reasonableness, with 

written regulations in place governing financial 

and business procedures.  Contracts should 

clearly specify prices, terms and payment 

Article 17 

The Company’s financial and business dealings or 

transactions with related parties and shareholders 

should be based on the principle of fairness and 

reasonableness, with written regulations in place 

governing financial and business procedures.  

Contracts should clearly specify prices, terms and 

Amended in 

alignment with 

laws and 

regulations  
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Original clause  Clause after amendment Explanation  

methods. Non-arm’s length transactions are 

prohibited.  

The Company should also follow the above 

principles for transactions or contracts with 

related parties and shareholders. Transfer of 

profits is strictly prohibited.  

payment methods. Non-arm’s length transactions 

and improper transfer of profits are prohibited.   

The aforesaid written regulations should include 

management procedures for sales and purchases, 

asset acquisitions or disposals, lending, 

endorsements and guarantees. Significant 

transactions should be resolved by the Board of 

Directors, approved by shareholders’ meetings or 

reported to shareholders’ meetings.   

Article 20 

Omitted from the first to the second item 

 

Board members should be diversified in a 

manner that supports the Company's operations, 

business activities, and growth requirements, 

provided that the number of directors who 

concurrently hold managerial positions do not 

exceed one-third of the board. The diversification 

policy should include, but is not limited to, the 

following two principles: 

I. Basic requirements and values: gender, age, 

nationality and culture, etc.  

II. Knowledge and skills: Professional 

background (e.g. law, accounting, industry, 

finance, marketing or technology), professional 

skill, and industry experience.  

Fourth item omitted  

Article 20 

Omitted from the first to the second item 

 

Board members should be diversified in a 

manner that supports the Company's operations, 

business activities, and growth requirements, 

provided that the number of directors who 

concurrently hold managerial positions do not 

exceed one-third of the board. The diversification 

policy should include, but is not limited to, the 

following two principles: 

I. Basic requirements and values: gender, age, 

nationality and culture, etc. Female directors 

ideally should account for one third of board 

seats.  

II. Knowledge and skills: Professional 

background (e.g. law, accounting, industry, 

finance, marketing or technology), professional 

skill, and industry experience.  

Fourth item omitted  

Amended in 

alignment with 

laws and 

regulations  

Article 24 

According to the Articles of Incorporation, 

the Company should have at least two 

independent directors and independent directors 

may not account for less than one fifth of board 

seats.  

 

Omitted from the second to the sixth item 

Article 24 

According to the Articles of Incorporation, the 

Company should have at least two independent 

directors and independent directors ideally 

account for at least one third of board seats. 

Independent directors ideally should not serve 

more than three consecutive terms. 

 

Omitted from the second to the sixth item 

Amended in 

alignment with 

laws and 

regulations  

Article 29 

Omitted from the first to the fourth item 

 

The Company should periodically (at least 

once per year) evaluate the independence and 

suitability of external accountants.  If the 

Company has not changed external accountants 

for seven consecutive years, penalties have been 

imposed or there are circumstances compromising 

the independence, it is necessary to evaluate 

whether the external accountants should be 

replaced. The evaluation results should be 

reported to the Board of Directors.  

Article 29 

Omitted from the first to the fourth item 

 

The Company should periodically (at least once 

per year) evaluate the independence and 

suitability of external accountants by referring to 

AQIs (Audit Qualify Indicators). If the Company 

has not changed external accountants for seven 

consecutive years, penalties have been imposed or 

there are circumstances compromising the 

independence, it is necessary to evaluate whether 

the external accountants should be replaced. The 

evaluation results should be reported to the Board 

of Directors.  

Amended in 

alignment with 

laws and 

regulations  

Article 59   

The Company should disclose and continue 

to update the following corporate governance 

related information according to relevant laws and 

TPEx regulations:  

Article 59   

The Company’s website should have a dedicated 

section to disclose and continues to update the 

following corporate governance related 

information:  

Amended in 

alignment with 

laws and 

regulations  
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Original clause  Clause after amendment Explanation  

I. Corporate governance structure and rules  

II. Shareholding structure and shareholders' 

interests (including a specific dividend policy) 

III. Board composition, members’ 

professionalism and independence 

IV. Responsibilities of Board of Directors and 

managers 

V. Audit Committee’s composition, responsibility 

and independence  

VI. Composition, responsibility and functioning 

of Remuneration Committee and other functional 

committees  

VII. Remuneration amounts paid to directors, 

President and Vice Presidents during the last two 

years; total amount as a percentage of net income 

on individual or parent-only financial statements; 

remuneration policies, standards, and packages; 

procedures to determine remuneration; and links 

with business performance and future risks.   It 

is necessary to disclose the remuneration to 

individual directors under special circumstances.  

VIII. Continuing education of directors 

IX. Stakeholders’ rights, relations,  complaining 

channels, issues of concern and an appropriate 

response mechanism 

X. Details on information disclosure according to 

laws and regulations  

XI. Corporate governance functioning, the 

difference from the Company’s own corporate 

governance guidelines and these guidelines and 

the reason for such a difference  

XII. Other information related to corporate 

governance  

Depending on the implementation of 

corporate governance, the Company is advised to 

adopt appropriate methods in the disclosure of 

plans and measures for corporate governance 

improvement.  

I. Board of Directors: backgrounds and 

responsibilities of board members, board diversity 

policy and implementation status 

II. Functional committees:  backgrounds and 

responsibilities of functional committee members 

III. Corporate governance related charters: such as 

Articles of Incorporation, Rules of Procedures of 

Board Meetings, and organization charters of 

functional committees 

IV. Importance information related to corporate 

governance such as establishment of Corporate 

Governance Officer 

                 

 

 

Article 61  
The Company’s Practical Guides on Corporate 

Governance takes effect upon the approval from 

the Board of Directors. Reporting will be made to 

the shareholders’ meeting. The same applies to 

amendments. 

These principles were formulated on March 8, 

2013. 

1st amendment on August 10, 2015 

2nd amendment on August 6, 2021  

3rd amendment on November 10, 2021  

Article 61  
The Company’s Practical Guides on Corporate 

Governance takes effect upon the approval from 

the Board of Directors. The same applies to 

amendments. 

These principles were formulated on March 8, 

2013. 

1st amendment on August 10, 2015 

2nd amendment on August 6, 2021  

3rd amendment on November 10, 2021  

4th amendment on March 17, 2023 

In alignment 

with laws and 

regulations and 

addition of 

amendment 

dates  
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corp. 

Articles of Incorporation 

Chapter 1: General Provision 

Article 1: The Company is incorporated in accordance with the Company Act and named “Shuang-Bang 

Industrial Corp.” 

Article 2: The scope of the Company’s business is as follows: 

1. CK01010 Footwear manufacturing 

2. C801100 Synthetic Resin and Plastic Manufacturing 

3. C802120 Industrial and Additive Manufacturing 

4. CA04010 Surface Treatments 

5. C805010 Manufacture of Plastic Sheets, Pipes and Tubes 

6. C805060 Plastic Leathers Products Manufacturing 

7. C801020 Petrochemical materials manufacturing 

8. C802990 Other Chemical Products Manufacturing 

9. C802200 Coatings, paints, dyes and pigments manufacturing  

10. ZZ99999 All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except those that 

are subject to special approval. 

Article 3: The Company is headquartered in Nantou County, Taiwan. When necessary and as resolved by 

the Board of Directors, the Company may establish branches overseas.  

Article 4 (deleted) 

Article 4-1: The Company may invest in other enterprises for business requirements. Such investments are 

not subject to the limitation of 40% paid-in capital as specified by Article 13 of the Company Act. 

 The Company may provide endorsements and guarantees to external parties according to its own 

Operational Procedures of Endorsements and Guarantees.  

Chapter 2: Shares  

Article 5: The Company’s authorized capital is NT$1.2 billion, divided by 120 million shares and at NT$10 

per share. The Board of Directors is authorized to issue shares in multiple tranches.          

Article 6:  It is not necessary for the Company to print out shares in issuance. However, registration with 

Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation is required.  

Article 7: Shareholders should provide names and addresses to the Company and fill in and submit the seal 

specimen cards for the Company’s recordkeeping. In case of loss or damage of the seal and other 

shareholders’ service related matters, the Regulations Governing the Administration of 

Shareholder Services of Public Companies shall apply.  

Article 8: When the Company’s registered shares are transferred by a holder via endorsement, it is 

necessary to write the transferee’s name on the shares and provide the transferee’s name and 

address of correspondence or residence for the Company’s register of shareholders.   

Article 9:  Shareholders or legal holders of shares should proceed in accordance with the Regulations 

Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies for loss or damage of 

shares.  

Article 10: Charges may be imposed for division and replacement of less than 1,000 shares due to loss or 

other reasons unless such shares are obtained via inheritance.  

Article 11: The book is closed for 60 days before a general shareholders' meeting, 30 days before an 

extraordinary shareholders’ meeting or five days before the record date for the issuance of 

dividends or other interests.  

Chapter 3 Shareholders' Meetings 

Article 12: Shareholders’ meetings are divided into annual shareholders’ meetings and extraordinary 

shareholders’ meetings. Annual shareholders’ meetings are convened once a year and within six 

months after the end of a financial year.  Notification is sent by the Board of Directors to 

shareholders 30 days in advance. Extraordinary shareholders’ meetings are convened when 
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necessary and according to laws.  

Article 13: Any shareholder is unable to attend a shareholders’ meeting for any reason may appoint a 

representative to attend the meeting by presenting a proxy form according to Article 177 of the 

Company Act.  

Article 14: If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting shall be chaired by 

Chairman. When Chairman is on leave or unable to exercise power for any reason, Chairman 

shall appoint Vice Chairman as deputy. If Vice Chairman is also on leave or unable to exercise 

power for any reason, Chairman shall appoint a director as deputy. Where Chairman does not 

appoint a deputy, the directors shall elect from among themselves one person to serve as chair. If 

a shareholders’ meeting is convened by a party with power to convene other than the Board of 

Directors, the convener shall chair the meeting. When there are two or more such conveners, they 

shall elect a chair from among themselves. 

Article 15: Unless otherwise specified by laws, each ordinary share of the Company is entitled to one vote.  

Article 15-1: The Company’s cancelation of public offering shall require a special resolution by the 

shareholders’ meeting. This clause is not changed whilst the Company is listed on Emerging 

Stock Market, Taiwan Stock Exchange or Taipei Exchange.  

Article 16: Unless otherwise stipulated in the Company Act, the resolution by the shareholders’ meeting 

requires the attendance of shareholders representing more than half of the total issued shares and 

the consent from the majority of voting rights represented by the attending shareholders.   

According to the rules set by competent authorities, the Company’s shareholders may exercise voting rights via 

electronic means. The shareholders who exercise voting rights via electronic means are deemed 

to be present in person. Relevant matters are processed according to laws and regulations.  

Article 17: Matters relating to the resolutions by a shareholders’ meeting shall be recorded in meeting 

minutes. The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the meeting chair and a copy 

distributed to each shareholder within 20 days after the meeting. Meeting minutes may be 

distributed via a public announcement. Meeting minutes should record the summary and the 

outcome of each proposal. Meeting minutes, along with sign-in books and proxies for 

shareholders’ meeting attendance, are retained by the Company according to Article 183 of the 

Company Act.  

Chapter 4: Directors and Audit Committee  

Article 18: The Company has seven to eleven directors. The nomination system is adopted for shareholders’ 

meetings to elect directors. Each term is three years. Re-election is allowed for consecutive terms.  

 Among the above number of directors, there shall be at least two independent directors and 

independent directors may not account for less than one fifth of board seats.  The professional 

qualifications, shareholdings, restrictions on positions held concurrently, nominations, election 

methods, and other matters of compliance for independent directors shall be handled in 

accordance with the relevant regulations set by competent securities authority. 

Article 18-1: Unless otherwise required by laws, the Company elects directors based on a cumulative voting 

system. Each ordinary share contains the votes in the same number as the number of directors to 

be elected. Votes can all be cast to one candidate or distributed to multiple candidates. The 

candidates who receive the highest number of votes are elected.  

Article 19: When the number of vacant director seats reaches one third of the board, the Board of Directors 

shall convene a shareholders’ meeting according to laws to elect directors to fill in the vacant 

seats for the remaining term of office.  

Article 20: Before the election for new directors is effected after the full term of office of existing directors, 

the term of office of out-going directors shall be extended until the time new directors have been 

elected and assumed office. 

Article 21: Directors organize board meetings for Chairman’s election. Chairman is elected among directors 

at a board meeting with at least two thirds of directors present and the approval by the majority of 

attending directors. Chairman executes all the Company’s matters according to laws, Articles of 

Incorporation and resolutions by shareholders’ meetings and by board meetings.  The Company 

may establish Vice President, depending on business needs.  
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Article 22: The Board of Directors decides on the Company’s operational guidelines and other important 

matters. The first meeting of each board is convened in accordance with Article 203 of the 

Company Act. All the other board meetings are convened and chaired by Chairman. If Chairman 

cannot exercise power for any reason, Vice Chairman shall act as deputy. If Vice Chairman also 

cannot exercise power for any reason, Chairman shall appoint a director as deputy. If no deputy is 

appointed, directors shall choose among themselves to act as deputy.  

Article 23: Unless otherwise required by the Company Act, a board meeting requires the attendance of more 

than half of directors and approval of the majority of the attending directors. If a director is 

unable to attend for any reason, a proxy may be issued to authorize another directors to attend the 

board meeting, by listing the matters for convening and the scope of authorization. However, 

each director can accept authorization by one director. If a board meeting is convened online, the 

directors participating online shall be deemed to have attended in person. 

Article 23-1: The convening of board meetings shall specify matters for discussion. Notices should be sent to 

directors seven days in advance. However, board meetings may be convened anytime in case of 

emergency.  

 The aforesaid convening may be notified in writing, via fax or over emails.  

Article 24: Meeting minutes should be produced for board meetings. Such minutes should be signed or 

sealed by chair and distributed to directors within 20 days after the meeting. Meeting minutes 

should record the summary and the outcome of each proposal. Meeting minutes, along with sign-

in books and proxies for board meeting attendance, are retained by the Company.  

Article 25: The Company has established Audit Committee in accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities 

and Exchange Act. Audit Committee consists of all independent directors, to exercise power as 

supervisors under the Company Act, the Securities and Exchange Act and other laws and 

regulations and in adherence to other relevant laws and company charters.   

Article 25-1: The Board of Directors is authorized to determine the remuneration of Chairman and directors 

according to their involvement in and contributions to the Company’s operation and in reference 

to the industry standards.  

Article 25-2: The Company may purchases liability insurances for its directors within the scope of liabilities 

according to laws and resulting from performance of business.  

Chapter 5 Managers and employees  

Article 26: The Company may have managers in place. Their appointment, dismissal and remuneration shall 

be handled in accordance with Article 29 of the Company Act.   

Article 27: According to Article 23 of the Articles of Incorporation, the Company may appoint consultants 

and key employees with resolutions by the Board of Directors.  

Article 28: The Company’s President appoints and dismisses its employees.  

Chapter 6 Finalization of accounts 

Article 29: At the end of each financial year, the Board of Directors shall prepare the following reports for 

the ratification of the shareholders' meeting:  

I.  Business report 

II.  Financial statements 

III.  Earning distribution or loss offsetting proposals 

Article 30: Depending on the annual profits, the Company shall allocation 5% to 10% as the remuneration to 

employees and no higher than 3% as the remuneration to directors.  However, profits must first 

be taken to offset against cumulative losses if any. 

 The annual profit mentioned in the above Paragraph shall refer to pre-tax profit before 

employees’ and directors’ remuneration in the current year. Employee remuneration can be paid 

in cash or in shares. Payments may also be made to employees of subordinate companies that 

satisfy the eligibility criteria. 

 Distribution of employee/director remuneration is subject to resolution in a board meeting with 

more than two-thirds of the board present, and voted in favor by more than half of all attending 
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directors. This decision must also be reported in shareholder meeting. 

Article 31-1: The Company shall distribute its annual earnings, if any, in the following order:   

1. Tax payments 

2. Loss offsetting  

3. 10% provision for legal reserve 

4. Provision for special reserve when necessary 

 The remainder plus undistributed earnings carried from previous years and current year's 

adjustments may be distributed at board of directors' proposal. Distribution of earnings that 

involves issuance of new shares is subject to resolution in a shareholder meeting. 

 Any cash distribution of dividend, profit, legal reserve, or capital reserve, whether in whole or in 

part, may be resolved in a board meeting with more than two-thirds of the board present, voted in 

favor by more than half of attending directors, and reported in the upcoming shareholder meeting. 

 The Company is currently in a stage of consistent growth, and after taking into consideration 

shareholders' interests and the organization's financial position and long-term prospects, no more 

than 90% of distributable earnings shall be paid out as dividends, with cash dividends amounting 

to no less than 10% of total dividends. 

Chapter 7 

Article 31: The Company’s organizational charters and detailed rules shall be formulated by the Board of 

Directors.  

Article 32: Any matters not covered by the Articles of Incorporation will be governed by the Company Act 

and other laws and regulations.  

Article 33: The Articles of Incorporation were established on November 4, 1989.  

1st amendment on February 1, 1990  

2nd amendment on July 29, 1991  

3rd amendment on February 11, 1992 

4th amendment on May 16, 1992  

5th amendment on February 1, 1994 

6th amendment on August 1, 1998 

7th amendment on September 23, 1998 

8th amendment on March 8, 1999  

9th amendment on July 18, 1999  

10th amendment on May 21, 2000  

11th amendment on June 15, 2001  

12th amendment on June 24, 2002  

13th amendment on June 24, 2003  

14th amendment on May 16, 2006 

15th amendment on June 28, 2007  

16th amendment on June 30, 2009  

17th amendment on June 8, 2010  

18th amendment on June 9, 2011  

19th amendment on June 18, 2012  

20th amendment on June 6, 2014 

21st amendment on April 9, 2015  

22nd amendment on June 24, 2016  

23rd amendment on June 14, 2017  

24th amendment on June 16, 2020  

25th amendment on August 27, 2021  
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corp. 

Rules of Procedures for Shareholders Meetings 

Article 1 

To establish a robust governance system for the Company’s shareholders' meetings, improve the 

supervisory function, and strengthen the management mechanism, these Rules are formulated in 

accordance with Article 5 of the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies.  

Article 2 

Unless otherwise stipulated by laws or Articles of Incorporation, the rules of procedure for the 

Company’s shareholders' meeting shall be governed by these Rules. 

Article 3 (Convening of shareholders' meetings and meeting notices) 

Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, the Company's shareholders’ meetings shall be 

convened by the Board of Directors. 

Thirty days before an annual shareholders’ meeting or fifteen days before an extraordinary 

shareholders’ meeting, the Company shall prepare electronic files of the meeting notice, proxy form, 

information on proposals for ratification, matters for discussion, election or dismissal of directors and 

other matters on the agenda and upload them to the Market Observation Post System (MOPS).  

Meanwhile, 21 days before the Company convenes an annual shareholders’ meeting or 15 days before 

an extraordinary shareholders' meeting, it shall prepare an electronic file of the shareholders’ meeting 

agenda handbook and the supplementary materials and upload them to the MOPS. Fifteen days before 

a shareholders’ meeting, the meeting handbook and supplementary materials should be available for 

shareholders to review at any time, displayed at the Company and its authorized shareholder service 

agency and distributed at the shareholders’ meeting.  

Matters to be specified in notices and announcements: With the consent of the addressee, the notice 

may be given in an electronic form.  

Election or dismissal of directors; amendments to the Articles of Incorporation; reduction of capital;  

application for ending of public offering; approval to remove the non-compete clause for the directors;  

capitalization of earnings; capitalization of legal reserve; dissolution, merger, or demerger; or any 

matter in each subparagraph of Paragraph 1 under Article 185 of the Company Act, Articles 26-1 and 

43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act, and Articles 56-1 and 60-2 of the Regulations Governing the 

Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, shall be set out and the essential contents 

explained in the notice of the shareholders’ meeting. None of the above matters may be raised by an 

extempore motion.  

Where an election of all directors and the onboarding date are stated in the notice of the shareholders’ 

meeting, the onboarding date may not be changed by extempore motion or any other means at the 

same meeting once the election has been completed at the shareholders’ meeting.  

A shareholder holding one percent or more of the total number of the issued shares may submit to the 

Company a proposal for discussion at a general shareholders’ meeting. The number of items so 

proposed is limited only to one, and no proposal containing more than one item will be included in the 

meeting agenda. A shareholder’s proposal in alignment with any circumstance under any subparagraph 

of paragraph 4 of Article 172-1 of the Company Act may not be included in the meeting agenda by the 

Board of Directors. A shareholder may propose a recommendation for urging the Company to promote 

public interests or fulfill its social responsibilities, provided procedurally the number of items so 

proposed is limited only to one in accordance with Article 172-1 of the Company Act, and no proposal 

containing more than one item will be included in the meeting agenda. 

Prior to the book closure date before an annual shareholders’ meeting is held, the Company shall 

publicly announce its acceptance of shareholders’ proposals in writing or by electronic means and the 

location and time period for their submission. The period for acceptance of shareholders’ proposals 

may not be fewer than 10 days.  

Each of such proposals from shareholders is limited to 300 words, and no proposal containing more 

than 300 words will be included in the meeting agenda. The shareholder making the proposal shall be 

present in person or by proxy at the general shareholders’ meeting to take part in the discussion of the 

proposal.  

The company shall, prior to preparing and delivering the shareholders’ meeting notice, inform, by a 

notice, all the proposal submitting shareholders of the proposal screening results, and shall list in the 

shareholders’ meeting notice the proposals conforming to the requirements set out in this Article. With 

regard to the proposals submitted by shareholders but not included in the agenda of the meeting, the 

cause of exclusion of such proposals and explanation shall be made by the board of directors at the 
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shareholders’ meeting to be convened. 

Article 4: (Proxy for attendance at shareholders’ meetings and authorization) 

For each shareholders’ meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by providing 

the proxy form issued by the Company and stating the scope of the proxy's authorization. 

Each shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy for any given 

shareholders’ meeting and shall deliver the proxy form to the Company at least five days before the 

date of the shareholders’ meeting. When a duplicate proxy form is served, the one received earliest 

shall prevail, unless a declaration is made to cancel the previous proxy form. 

Once a proxy form is received by the Company, if a shareholder wishes to attend the shareholders’ 

meeting in person or to exercise their voting rights in writing or by electronic means, a written proxy 

rescission notice shall be filed with the Company two days prior to the date of the shareholders’ 

meeting, otherwise, the voting power exercised by the authorized proxy at the meeting shall prevail. 

Article 5: (Principles for the venue and time of a shareholders' meeting) 

The venue for a shareholders’ meeting shall be the premises of the Company or a place easily 

accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders’ meeting. The meeting may begin no earlier 

than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration shall be given to independent directors’ 

opinions with respect to the place and time of the meeting. 

Article 6: (Preparation of a sign-in book and other documents) 

The company shall specify in the meeting notice the time and venue for shareholders to sign in and 

other related matters.  

The shareholders’ meeting reporting time referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be 30 minutes 

prior to the meeting started. There should be clear signs at the reporting place with adequate staff 

assigned to handle the process. 

Shareholders or representatives authorized by shareholders (collectively referred to as “shareholders”) 

shall attend the shareholders’ meetings with attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other certificates of 

attendance. The Company may not arbitrarily add requirements for other documents beyond those 

showing eligibility to attendance presented by shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy forms should 

bring identification documents for verification.  

The Company shall furnish the attending shareholders with a sign-in book or attending shareholders 

may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in. 

The Company shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting handbook, annual report, 

attendance card, speaker's slips, voting slips and other meeting materials. Where there is an election of 

directors, ballots shall also be provided.  

When the government or a juridical person is a shareholder, it may be represented by more than one 

representative at a shareholders’ meeting. When a juridical person is appointed to attend as a proxy, it 

may designate only one person to represent it in the meeting. 

Article 7: (Chair of the shareholders' meeting and attendees in a non-voting capacity) 

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting shall be chaired by the 

Chairman. When the Chairman is on leave or unable to exercise the powers as the chair for any reason, 

the Vice Chairman shall chair the meeting on his behalf. Where there is no such a position as Vice 

Chairman or the Vice Chairman is on leave or unable to exercise the powers as the chair for any 

reason, the Chairman shall appoint one of the managing directors to act as the chair. Where there is no 

such a position as managing director, the Chairman shall appoint one of the directors to act as the 

chair. Where the Chairman fails to make such a designation, the managing directors or directors shall 

select, from among themselves, one person to serve as the chair. 

When a managing director or director serves as the chair, as referred to in the preceding paragraph, the 

director shall have held that position for six months or more with great understanding of the 

Company’s financial position and business conditions. The same shall apply for a representative of a 

institutional director to serve as the chair. 

It is advisable that shareholders’ meetings convened by the Board of Directors be chaired by the 

Chairman in person and attended by a majority of the directors and at least one member from each 

functional committee as representatives. The attendance shall be recorded in meeting minutes. 

Where a shareholders’ meeting is convened by a party with power to convene other than the Board of 

Directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. When there are two or more such convening 

parties, they shall mutually select a chair from among themselves. 

The Company may appoint its attorneys, CPAs, or relevant persons retained by it to attend a 

shareholders’ meeting in a non-voting capacity. 

Article 8: (Audio or video recordings as evidence of the shareholders' meetings) 
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The Company shall make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the entire process of the 

shareholders’ meeting from shareholders’ sign-in, the proceedings of the meeting, as well as the 

process of voting and vote counting. 

The audio and video recording in the preceding paragraph shall be kept for at least one year. If, 

however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording shall 

be retained until the conclusion of the litigation. 

Article 9: (Counting of the shares represented by shareholders in attendance at shareholders’ meetings)  

Attendance at shareholders’ meetings shall be counted based on numbers of shares. The number of 

shares in attendance is the shares represented by the sign-in book or sign-in cards plus the number of 

shares with voting rights exercised in writing or via electronic means.  

The chair shall call the meeting to order upon the meeting time and disclose information on the 

number of non-voting shares and number of shares represented by shareholders in attendance.  

However, when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of issued 

shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no more than two such postponements, 

for a combined total of no more than one hour, may be made. If the quorum of shareholders 

representing at least once third of issued shares is not met after two postponements, the chair 

announces the cancelation of the meeting.  

If the quorum of shareholders representing at least once third of issued shares is not met after two 

postponements, a tentative resolutions may be passed in accordance with the first paragraph of Article 

175 under the Company Act. Shareholders shall be notified of the tentative resolutions, and 

shareholders will be notified for the convening of the shareholders’ meeting within one month.  

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a majority of the total 

number of outstanding shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative resolution for a vote by the 

shareholders’ meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act. 

Article 10 (Discussion of proposals) 

When a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the agenda is determined by the 

Board of Directors. All the proposals (including Extraordinary Motion and amendments to original 

proposals) shall be voted in sequence. The meeting shall be proceeded according to the agenda, which 

cannot be changed unless resolved by the shareholders’ meeting.  

The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders’ meeting 

convened by a party with the power to convene other than the Board of Directors. 

Before the conclusion of the agenda (including Extraordinary Motion) mentioned in the two preceding 

paragraphs, the chair may not announce adjournment unless resolved by the meeting. If the chair 

declares the meeting adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure, the other members of the Board 

of Directors shall promptly assist the attending shareholders in electing a new chair in accordance with 

statutory procedures, by agreement of a majority of the votes represented by the attending shareholders 

to continue the meeting.  

The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation and discussion of 

proposals and of amendments or Extraordinary Motion put forward by the shareholders; when the 

chair is of the opinion that a proposal has been discussed sufficiently to put it to a vote, the chair may 

announce the discussion closed, call for a vote, and schedule sufficient time for voting. 

Article 11: (Speeches by shareholders) 

Before speaking, an attending shareholder shall specify on a speaker's slip the subject of the speech, 

the shareholder account number (or attendance card number), and account name. The order in which 

shareholders speak will be set by the chair.  

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not actually speak shall be 

deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech is not in alignment with the subject on the 

speaker's slip, the spoken content shall prevail. 

Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on the same 

proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes; if the shareholder's speech violates the rules 

or exceeds the scope of the motion, the chair may have the shareholder stop the speech.  

Attending shareholders may not interfere with the speaking shareholders without the Chairman's 

consent and the speaking shareholders. The Chairman will have the violating shareholders stopped. 

When an institutional shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a shareholders’ 

meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the same proposal. 

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or direct relevant 

personnel to respond. 

Article 12 (Calculating of votes and the system of recusal) 
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Votes cast at shareholders’ meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares. 

With respect to resolutions by a shareholders’ meeting, the number of shares held by a shareholder 

without voting rights shall not be calculated as part of the total number of outstanding shares. 

When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there is the likelihood that 

such a relationship would prejudice the interests of the Company, that shareholder may not vote on 

that item and may not exercise voting rights as a proxy for any other shareholder. 

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the preceding paragraph 

shall not be counted toward the number of the voting rights represented by attending shareholders. 

With the exception of a trust enterprise or a stock affairs agency approved by the competent securities 

authority, when one person is concurrently appointed as a proxy by two or more shareholders, the 

voting rights represented by that proxy may not exceed three percent of the voting rights represented 

by the total number of the issued shares. If that percentage is exceeded, the voting rights in excess of 

that percentage shall not be included in the counting. 

Article 13 (Methods for voting, scrutineering, and vote counting) 

Each share is entitled to one vote, except when the shares are restricted or deemed non-voting shares 

under the second paragraph Article 179 of the Company Act.  

When the Company holds a shareholders’ meeting, it shall adopt the exercise of voting rights by 

electronic means and may adopt the exercise of voting rights by correspondence. When voting rights 

are exercised by correspondence or electronic means, the method of exercise shall be specified in the 

shareholders’ meeting notice. A shareholder’s exercise of voting rights by correspondence or electronic 

means will be deemed to have attended the meeting in person, but to have waived their rights with 

respect to the Extraordinary Motion and amendments to original proposals of that meeting; it is 

therefore advisable that the Company avoid the submission of Extraordinary Motion and amendments 

to original proposals. 

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means under the 

preceding paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent to the Company at least two days 

before the date of the shareholders’ meeting. When duplicate declarations of intent are delivered, the 

one received earliest shall prevail, except when a declaration is made to cancel the earlier declaration 

of intent. 

If shareholders would like to attend the shareholders’ meeting in person after the exercise of voting 

rights by correspondence or by electronic means, it is necessary to indicate the withdrawal of the 

aforesaid exercise of voting rights two days before the shareholders’ meeting in the same method with 

which the voting rights were exercised. If the request for withdrawal occurs after the deadline, the 

voting right exercised by correspondence or by electronic means shall prevail. If the shareholder 

exercises the voting right in writing or by electronic means and appoints a proxy with a proxy form to 

attend the shareholders’ meeting, the voting right exercised by the attending proxy at the meeting shall 

prevail. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in the Company's Articles of Incorporation, the 

passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of the voting rights represented by 

the attending shareholders. At the time of a vote, for each proposal, the chair or a person designated by 

the chair shall first announce the total number of voting rights represented by the attending 

shareholders, followed by a vote by the shareholders. After the conclusion of the meeting, on the same 

day it is held, the results for each proposal, based on the numbers of votes for and against and the 

number of abstentions, shall be entered on the MOPS. 

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present the amended or 

alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order in which they will be put 

to a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other proposals will then be deemed rejected and 

no further voting shall be required. 

Scrutineers and vote counting personnel for the voting on proposals shall be appointed by the chair, 

provided all scrutineers be shareholders of the Company. 

Vote counting for proposals or elections at a shareholders’ meeting shall be conducted in public at the 

place of the shareholders’ meeting. Immediately after vote counting has been completed, the results of 

the voting, including the numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site and recorded. 

Article 14: (Elections) 

The election of directors at a shareholders’ meeting shall be held in accordance with the applicable 

election and appointment rules adopted by the Company, and the voting results shall be announced on-

site immediately, including the names of those elected and the number of votes received and the names 

of those not elected and the number of votes received. 

The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed with the signatures of 



 

44 

 

the scrutineers and kept in proper custody for at least one year. If, however, a shareholder files a 

lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording shall be retained until the 

conclusion of the litigation. 

Article 15: (Meeting minutes and items to be signed)  

Matters relating to the resolutions by a shareholders’ meeting shall be recorded in the meeting minutes. 

The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of the meeting and a copy distributed to 

each shareholder within 20 days after the conclusion of the meeting. The meeting minutes may be 

produced and distributed in an electronic form. 

Said distribution may be announced through the MOPS. 

Meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place of the meeting, the chair's full 

name, the methods by which resolutions are adopted, and a summary of the deliberations and voting 

results (including the number of votes), and disclose the number of votes won by each candidate in the 

event of an election of directors. The minutes shall be retained for the duration of the existence of the 

Company. 

Article 16: (Public announcement) 

The number of shares solicited by solicitors and the number of proxy shares authorized to 

representatives shall be clearly displayed by the Company at the place and on the day of the 

shareholders’ meeting in the tally format required.  

If any resolutions by the shareholders' meeting are material information as stipulated by laws and 

regulations or Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation (Taipei Exchange), the Company shall upload the 

content to the MOPS prior to a deadline. 

Article 17 (maintenance of order) 

Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders’ meeting shall wear an identification badge or an 

armband. 

The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at the meeting place.  

When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the meeting place, they shall wear an 

identification badge or an armband, reading "Proctor." 

At the place of a shareholders’ meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through any device other 

than the public address equipment set up by the Company, the chair may prevent the shareholder from 

so doing. 

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's correction, obstructing the 

proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair may direct the proctors or security personnel 

to escort the shareholder from the meeting. 

Article 18 (intermissions and resumption of meeting） 

When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time considerations. If a 

force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting temporarily suspended and announce a 

time when, in view of the circumstances, the meeting will be resumed. 

If the venue can no longer be used before the conclusion of the shareholders’ meeting agenda 

(including Extraordinary Motion), the shareholders’ meeting may decide to resume the meeting at a 

different venue.  

A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders’ meeting to defer or resume the meeting within five 

days in accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act. 

Article 19 

These Rules and all amendments thereto shall be enforced upon approval by a shareholders’ meeting.  

Article 20 

These Rules were established on November 4, 1989.  

2nd amendment on May 21, 2000  

3rd amendment on June 24, 2002  

4th amendment on June 14, 2017  

5th amendment on June 16, 2020  

6th amendment on August 27, 2021  
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Shuang-Bang Industrial Corp. 

Table of Directors’ Shareholdings  
 

 

I. Minimum required shareholdings by all directors and the number of shares held according to the register  

 

Title 
Required number of shares 

held  
No. of shares shown on 

shareholder register  

Director 6,588,866 18,077,665 

 

II. No. of shares held by directors    

 

Title Name 
No. of shares shown on 

shareholder register  

Chairman Chung-Tang Chang 6,479,434 

Vice Chairman Ah-Ming Chen 4,998,802 

Director Hsi-Neng Hsieh 891,571 

Director Ken-Chen Chen 567,269 

Director Ho-Pin Lin 2,622,121 

Director 

Representative of Uei-

Want Industrial Co., Ltd.: 

Cheng-Yen Liang 

2,500,000 

Independent Director Yen Wang - 

Independent Director Tu-Hsin Yang - 

Independent Director Jen-Fon Jen  18,468 

Note 1: Book closure date: April 22, 2023 

Note 2: Total number of shares issued by the Company: 82,360,826 shares  
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